
1 
Board Agenda 4/1/21 

First Unitarian Church of Portland 
Board of Trustees Meeting – April 1, 2021 – Agenda 

Board (only) Deepening 6:30-7:00pm, Board Meeting - 7 - 9pm 

 
Board Meeting 

6:30  Deepening/Check-in 
   
7:00  Convene 

Opening Words – Marilyn 
Determine Quorum 
Process Observer Review 
Review Agenda 
Review and Approve Previous Meeting Minutes 

Board Roles 
Timekeeper – Adam 
Process Observer – Andy 
 
 

   

7:05  Congregant Comment Period 
   
7:15  Updates 
  • Committee updates – reports attached 

• ET Update 
   
7:35  Consent Agenda 

• Vote to approve/adopt the budget for the 2021-2022 church year 
• Vote to approve payment of $35,752 for the city-required sewer work 

o $30718.41 to be taken from the Required Loan Reserve 
o $5,033.59 to be taken from the Special Projects Reserve 

  • Vote to approve Board officers and committee chairs for 2021-2022 
 Moderator – Mindy Clark 
 Secretary – Brad Taylor 
 Treasurer – Andy Wilson 
 Gov Com Chair – Ryan Deibert 
 Com Com Chair – Theo Harper 

   
7:40  Generative Discussion 

• Exploring the issues, concerns and opportunities that come with returning to 
in-person church 

   
8:30  Executive Session 
   
8:50  Meeting Wrap-up 
  Communications Check 

Process Observations 
Closing Words – Marilyn 

   
9:00  Adjourn 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82930223125?pwd=TDdrckx1T0lSTG1KT3BFWGx5MmQyZz09


2 
Board Agenda 4/1/21 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82930223125?pwd=TDdrckx1T0lSTG1KT3BFWGx5MmQyZz09  
 
Meeting ID: 829 3022 3125 
Passcode: 398649 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,82930223125# US (San Jose) 
+12532158782,,82930223125# US (Tacoma) 
 

Our Mission:  

The mission of First Unitarian Portland is to create a welcoming community of diverse individuals; to 
promote love, reason and freedom in religion; to foster lifelong spiritual growth; and to act for social 
justice.  

Our Vision:  

First Unitarian Portland is a beacon of hope for us and for our community, a spiritual center in the 
heart of our city that helps each of us to find our moral compass, calling and challenging us to build 
the beloved community with an ever deepening sense of spirit, diversity and inclusion.  

Goals for First Unitarian Church  

Five Year Church Goals are created in collaboration with the congregation and Executive Team and 
adopted by the Board. They reflect the mission and vision of our church. Church goals are primarily 
carried out by the Executive Team and staff, collaborating with the Board.  

Board 1-3 Year Goals are created by the Board and Executive Team at our yearly Retreat. Board goals 
may draw from the 5 Year Church goals yet reflect work within the purview of the Board.  

First Unitarian Church Five Year Goals  

At the Board meeting on May 6, 2016, the Board adopted five-year goals for the church.  

From 2016-2021, First Unitarian Church of Portland will:  

• Focus on collaborative governance, revising policies for clarity and brevity and creating linkages 
between the Congregation, the Board, and the Executive Team.  

• Increase church funding through enhanced giving, including goal to reduce or retire the Buchan 
Building mortgage.  

• Make a cultural transition from program-focused church to mission-driven church, with priority to 
building beloved community between generations. 

• Develop a long-term plan for development and sustainability of church campus given changing 
dynamics of West End and downtown Portland. 

 



3 
Board Agenda 4/1/21 

 

Board 1-3-Year goals 

The Board adopted its 1-3-year goals at the October meeting. They are: 

1. Continue to examine the ways in which power, privilege and White supremacy culture affect 
our church, including our board work, to include:  
a) Educating ourselves on the issues, such that we can support the development of this work 

in the congregation.  
b) Taking steps to improve our practices and model antiracist behavior. This will include:  

i. Evaluating how we enact policy-based governance in a manner that actively 
dismantles White supremacy culture in our board and in our congregation.  

ii. Exploring and considering endorsing the adoption of the 8th Principle through its 
addition to our bylaws.  

2. Holding the mission of the church, engage in ongoing, generative conversations with the 
Executive Team and the congregation to:  
a) Develop understanding of the church that’s emerging, as well as the pastoral needs and 

continuing connections among congregants in the church that is  
b) Approve a revenue plan to sustain the mission of the church in current and emerging 

contexts  
c) Lead the congregation in development of 3-year church goals  
d) Consider viable options for maintenance of our current physical plant and future 

development of the campus to meet the needs of the emerging church  

3. Governance committee will review and possibly recommend changes to the bylaws as they 
relate to size of Board, and definition of pledging member in board policies.  

4. Continue to support the Ministerial Search Committee and the transition to a new Senior 
Minister. 

 



4 
 

 First Unitarian Church Portland Oregon 
 Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 

March 4, 2021 (Conducted via zoom meeting) 

 
Board members present: Mindy Clark, Alan Comnes, Cindy Cumfer, Ryan Deibert, Theo Harper, 
Caitlynn Hill, Adam House, Marilyn Mays, Barbara Morrison, Brad Taylor, Andy Wilson, Leila 
Wrathall 

Board members absent: None 

Ex officio board members present: Kathy Ludlow 

Ministers and staff present:  Rev. Bill Sinkford, Rev. Tom Disrud, Kathryn Estey, Intern Minister 
Stacey Mitchell 

Timekeeper: Alan Comnes 

Process Observer: Theo Harper 

Congregants present: Steven Storla (representing Nominating Committee) 

The board meeting convened at 7:02 PM. 

Opening words:  Andy Wilson read from Elaine Pagels book, Why Religion? 

 
Mindy Clark determined there was a quorum. 
 
Process observer review:  
No notes to share from last month. 
 
Review agenda:  
Agenda was reviewed. No changes were made. 

 Review and Approve previous meeting’s minutes:  
Leiala Wrathall moved and Theo Harper seconded a motion to approve the minutes. The 
motion carried with a unanimous vote. 

 Congregant Comment:   
Steven Storla offered greetings and a very brief update from the Nominating Committee. 

Dates to calendar 
● None noted. 
 
ET updates 
● This is the anniversary of the coming of the pandemic to the country. We will have two 

services focused on that anniversary, one this Sunday, the second the week after. We have 
carefully prepared these services to mark an important milestone in our lives together. 

● The ET has presented the first cut at the budget to the Finance Committee. It is out of 



5 
 

balance, as is common at this stage. We have been on a three year plan to reduce use of 
reserves, but we will be asking the board to defer that move for one year. While we could 
present a balanced budget without drawing on reserves, it seems imprudent in a year 
when we will be coming back to in-person worship in a hybrid format. We want to make 
that transition well, and there are simply many unknowns. There are always assumptions 
built into a budget, but this year many of those feel more guesses than educated guesses.  

● We will soon begin the process of asking forgiveness for the PPP loan. Our bank is 
prepared to assist us in that process. 

● During the winter storm in February, we had another roof leak at the church, this time at 
the office building. It is not on the scale of damage that has occurred at the Buchan 
Building. The abatement was performed well by our sexton staff without needing to 
engage outside contractors. Additional repair to the roof will be required, but we continue 
to defer other related repairs given the age of the building and diminishing returns on 
those investments. 

● A volunteer has offered to make a photo-based membership directory and will begin doing 
so in the coming year. 

● Northwest Academy will be coming back to hybrid format in April with limited instruction. 
In May, they will begin hybrid instruction, increasing their presence on campus to four-
days-a-week. 

● We have begun the process to imagine regathering. It’s our assumption that with the 
success of the vaccination effort, there will be increasing desire for us to regather. We feel 
it, and we are anxious to begin regathering as well. Possibilities that we’re considering: 
▪ We may begin by inviting those who have been vaccinated to join in the sanctuary, 

masked and distanced, to observe the conduct of the online worship in the current 
format, but not to return to full in-person worship (e.g. communal hymn singing). We 
are likely to begin trials of this in late spring. 

▪ We are hoping to hold some outdoor all-church worship gatherings this summer (one, 
perhaps two), and have begun to contact venues.  

▪ We are convening a task group of congregants to think through what return will look 
like, and program leaders have begun very substantial conversations about what return 
might look like. We have congregants with medical and scientific backgrounds, and we 
will include them in this work. 

● 8th Principle updates: 
▪ We now have a web page up as a resource. 
▪ Paula Cole Jones will join us again on May 16th to share an assessment tool to help us 

understand communities’ next phases of work in enacting the 8th Principle. 
▪ The current effort represents a really excellent accomplishment of outreach - more 

than 400 congregants who have participated in Paula’s two-hour workshop.  
▪ We anticipate it will be wise to offer another workshop session for congregants after 

ballots have been distributed. 
● This month’s theme is Intention. 
 
Committee Reports are included in the board packet and included here by reference. 
 

https://www.firstunitarianportland.org/8th-principle/


6 
 

● No additional committee updates were offered.  
 
Consent Agenda: 
● Approve expenditure of approximately $35,000 to cover sewer repair charges from City of 

Portland  
● Approve renewal of NW Academy lease for 2 years.  

○ Year 1 includes a 3% discount because they have not used the building this year.  
○ Year 2 reverts to what they are paying now.  

● Vote to adopt the bylaws changes we agreed to in previous meetings (this is housekeeping, 
we didn’t use the correct language when we voted previously) 

○ Change to Article IV, Section 1 - start of board term is July 1 (rather than June 1)  
○ Change in the title of Article VIII, Section 2 from “Worship Duties of Ministers” to 

“Spiritual Leadership of Ministers” 
○ Add the 8th Principle to Article I, Section 2  

  
Cindy Cumfer moved and Adam House seconded a motion to approve.  The motion carried with 
a unanimous vote.  

Action Items: 

No Action Items were considered.  

 

Discussion Items: 

● Next steps in board size discussion 
○ Background: 

■ We had originally intended to have a separate board work session (e.g. 
mini-retreat) to further our board size discussion following the Susan 
Beaumont workshop, but we were unable to do so, given the work to 
identify new ministerial search committee members. 

■ We sense that this will require more time than we have to facilitate a 
full conversation in time to forward any related bylaws amendments for 
congregational vote this year, but we want to check in with the board 
collectively to understand how best to proceed. 

○ Board discussion:  
■ Agree that it’s fair to put this off for a while. We have three new 

members who have come on this year, and they are a great asset. I 
value them, and want to make sure that we wouldn’t lose them through 
shrinking the board. I felt we didn’t have the time and attention to have 
this conversation in a full and considered way, and I support delaying 
the conversation. 

■ I think we first need to have a conversation about what the board’s 
work is. That will allow us to get back to the conversation about what 
size groups are best structured for which type of work. 

■ I’ve been reflecting on how this conversation is in relationship with the 



7 
 

8th Principle. I’m interested to see how Paula Cole Jones’ forthcoming 
conversation might have us reflecting on board size. 

■ I think we may want to include this issue in our retreat this year, so that 
we can further pursue the conversation early next year. 

■ I’ve never really heard a crisp definition of the problem we’re trying to 
solve. 

■ It’s less a problem that needs to be fixed, and more a truly generative 
discussion where we’re thinking critically about our work and how we 
can best structure the board to support that work.  

■ We have been told that our board is very large for the size of 
congregation we have. It may not be the most efficient structure for 
what we are. 

■ We’ve grown exponentially over the last several years, and have not 
sufficiently examined how we can best do the work of the board. 

■ This is a good conversation, but my brain is overloaded this year. We will 
be the same board going into next year (we aren’t losing or gaining 
members), so it won’t hurt to delay, as we have the same foundation of 
knowledge and exposure to the conversation. 

■ I would like for this to be a full, thoughtful, multi-part conversation. 
■ This is something valid for us to look at, given that it will be important to 

new ministers in the search process.  
■ Some things could make the board smaller while still making the 

governance more inclusive.  
■ We are likely to start the conversation in retreat and continue with 

additional conversations in fall of next year. 
 

The board took no related actions. 
 

● Church goals process  
○ Background: 

■ This is our third year facilitating church dialogues. It has been a work in 
process, but adding zoom to the mix adds complexity, especially for 
larger groups. 

■ The Communications Committee has reached out to some of the groups 
to set up dates, and, once scheduled, will reach out to other board 
members to help host/facilitate. 

■ At a minimum we’ll need two people for each group: One to facilitate, 
one to capture notes.  

■ Through this process, we want to invite the entire congregation to 
provide information, without getting so much information that it will be 
overwhelming. 

■ The goals for this exercise are at least two-fold: 
● The board gets good input to inform the goal-setting process 
● Congregants have meaningful conversations and see information 



8 
 

reflected back to them 
■ Brad has developed an orientation letter and a questionnaire (see 

attached). 
■ We hope that this will be a broader board activity engaging in this 

conversation with various groups.  
■ As a board, we will be able to review these results and try to discern 

themes that can lead to three-to-five key goals. These are intentionally 
open-ended questions.  

○ Board discussion:  
■ We need to be aware that many congregants think in terms of programs 

that they connect with, rather than thinking about the big vision of the 
church. Is it possible to structure this to more broadly draw that out? 

■ May want to use some technique where you create a map, do some 
clustering, and then return to the group to test it. The more interaction 
you have, the better engaged people will be. 

■ Online collaboration tools may help to facilitate (online white boards 
and sticky note processes like Mural or Jamboard) 

■ I don’t expect that we will fully complete this within the fiscal year, and 
that’s OK. 

■ I really appreciate giving groups the option of how they would like to 
interact with us. Giving them open-ended questions is really helpful. 

■ Tonight’s conversation suggests that Comm Comm may need a work 
session to more fully develop the process. 

■ We should have some level of coordination with Ministerial Search 
Committee (MSC) to make sure we’re not duplicating effort.  

■ We should try to have church goals finalized prior to completion of the 
informational packet that MSC will assemble as part of the search 
process. 

■ It may help to have a board forum to share themes and findings, 
providing information back (either as part of developing goals or as 
context when describing the goals we developed and the process we 
used to develop them). 

 
The board took no related actions. 

 
Generative Discussion: Process for selecting board leadership 

● Background:  
● Tonight we want to have an open conversation about our process as a board to select 

our board leadership. 
● We are looking for ways that we can ensure that people who are interested in board 

leadership can express that. This can support power sharing, leadership development 
and turnover in people serving in the Board Officers Committee (BOC) from year to 
year. 

● In past years, the BOC has reached out to each board member to understand their 

https://www.mural.co/
https://workspace.google.com/products/jamboard/?utm_source=google&utm_medium=cpc&utm_campaign=na-US-all-en-dr-bkws-all-all-trial-e-dr-1003894&utm_content=text-ad-none-any-DEV_c-CRE_274129647759-ADGP_Hybrid%20%7C%20AW%20SEM%20%7C%20BKWS%20~%20EXA%20%2F%2F%20Jamboard%20%5B1:1%5D%20Google%20Jamboard-KWID_43700037135188953-kwd-331602498461&utm_term=KW_jamboard-ST_Jamboard&gclid=CjwKCAiAp4KCBhB6EiwAxRxbpMkBr5uaVYMqTwYWRvheJ5TYT0kPnxCr47URB4znoqWv2sZs1DQwABoCi1AQAvD_BwE&gclsrc=aw.ds


9 
 

interests, and last year, we stepped out of an “ascension” model where there was 
automatic progression from the vice-moderator to moderator.  

● Typically the board elects its officers at the June meeting, so conversations typically 
begin in March and April. 

● Board discussion:  
● Not sure we want to set anything in stone (e.g. term limits). At some point, I felt it was 

too heavily on the BOC in making these decisions, and I want us to be open about it. I 
want people to express their interest in leadership. 

● A process that’s helpful to prevent people from ruling themselves out (e.g. for fear of 
stepping on toes or for assuming they may not be the most skilled among the group): 

○ “If you would like to take yourself out of consideration for this position, let me 
know.”  

○ I like this process, because it blanket-assumes that everyone is interested and 
creates the opportunity to opt out. 

● Can we send an email listing positions that will be open and ask for response for 
positions you’re not interested in serving in? 

● Personally, I would like to have someone who has been on Finance Committee follow 
me as Treasurer, so I reached out to all three board members on Finance Committee to 
assess their interest. Part of my goal was to do some succession planning (e.g. pull 
them into planning meetings with Katherine when we’re setting committee meeting 
agendas). So it may not always be appropriate to solicit broad interest, as we may want 
to be more strategic about succession.  

● I’m very interested in sharing power, but I would say that the person chairing Finance 
Committee should have knowledge or interest in developing the knowledge of how to 
read financial statements. The skills needed to chair the Governance Committee may 
be more transferable. So there’s also a role for expertise that may not be sufficient just 
to develop through committee engagement. I also really like the idea of nurturing 
leadership of someone else through committee participation. 

● In many organizations I’ve been part of, that required knowledge set is written out. 
This seems most important in finance, then governance, then communications. 

● As we were talking about moderator and how to select, we’ve talked about them 
having served on BOC, which would require that they either serve as Secretary, 
Treasurer or a committee head. I think it’s helpful to have that structure. This requires 
a level of forward-thinking.  

● Especially as a new board member, it would be very helpful for me to hear from people 
in each of those roles what their responsibilities and workloads look like. I also like 
committee chairs being transparent about succession planning and transition within 
the committees. If we’re talking about really examining the way we do our work as a 
board, this conversation about each of the jobs will be helpful for that, too. 

● We do have job descriptions for each of the positions, but I do think we need more 
than a few word statement. We may need a description that says: “This is what I do.” 
More of the nuts-and-bolts version that we could each complete in more detail. This 
existed in the past, but needs to be updated. 

● This is a conversation we should have with new members coming on to identify what 



10 
 

they would like to do over the course of their term.  
● More often than not, for key positions, people need to be asked. We also need to keep 

in mind that not everybody will be a good fit for every roll.  
● If there are other people on Finance Committee who have strong financial knowledge, 

the Treasurer can be well-mentored and supported, even if they don’t carry strong 
financial knowledge coming into the role. The Finance Committee has more “help in 
the background” than almost any committee, so don’t want to dissuade people from 
coming into the roll without deep experience.  

● I don’t want people to be afraid to join the BOC because they may end up Moderator.  
● In the past, it’s been the BOC that’s held the discernment process. If you get too many 

people in it, that process becomes unwieldy.  
● When you have an exclusive path to leadership with the exclusive group of leaders 

deciding who can get on that exclusive path, people can be excluded. 
● Would it be a good role for a smaller number of board members who are not 

interested in being in the leadership roles to join the BOC for the discernment 
conversation to diversify the voices in the conversation?  

○ I like that idea. It opens up the path. 
○ If we went that route, it would also be good to develop a loose 

criteria/guidance (e.g. trying to diversify the leadership, trying to rotate 
leadership over time). Conversation about the criteria could start with BOC, and 
then send it to board for additional conversation. If you send it initially to the 
full board, that’s too large a group. 

● Some ideas from tonight: 
○ Committee chairs fostering conversation within the committees about 

succession planning and interest of members 
○ Idea of a “nominating committee” (BOC + a few others) 
○ Discussion at BOC, summarize and bring back to board for further conversation 

 
 
Communication Check:   
● What other informational material will need to go into congregational ballot? 

Process Observations:  

● Everyone was well engaged and got to participate 

● Tolerated discomfort and didn’t all have to agree 

● Realistic timelines: Bringing the board size conversation to further discussion at a later time 

● Some discussions deferred and good wrap up of generative conversation 

Closing Words: Andy Wilson read from Elaine Pagels book, Why Religion? 

Meeting adjourned at 8:58 pm.  

Minutes respectfully submitted: Ryan Deibert, board secretary 



11 
 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Chair: Cindy Cumfer 
Committee Members: Mindy Clark, Ryan Deibert, Caitlynn Hill, Adam House, Kathy Ludlow  

 

DATE AND PLACE: Wednesday, March 10, 7-9 p.m. 
 
Opening Words—Ryan: Amanda McGuire - Poem to Self 
 
Next Meeting: Mindy 
 
Announcements:  
 
RYAN: Has made a connection with Lia Nagase - discussed possibly using the search 
committee survey for the congregational survey and making a connection with BIPOC caucus. 
Ryan and Lia to continue conversation. 
 
ADAM: Q: Should it be formally stated that we send two representatives of the Board of 
Trustees to the foundation board? A: This is in the Foundation Board bylaws. 
 
Acceptance of Last Meetings Minutes: Accepted 
 
Report on To Do list on Last Meetings Minutes: 
 
 ADAM: Follow-up on Safe Church Policy: Deferred for another meeting to gather 
information. 
 CINDY: Info on past precedent for Board endorsement of measures voted on by 
 members [Rendered moot by Board action to endorse 8th Principle] 
 
Agenda Items:  
 
1. Check in on Future Gov Comm/Board Roles? Ryan has expressed interest in chairing Gov 
Comm. 
 
2. Safe Church Policy Update (Adam: check with KE about actions church takes for volunteers; 
process for members with problems with staff person; ask ET about policies they have; look at 
other church policies) Deferred 
 
3. Brief discussion suggesting implementing a training for new board members on finances to 
be included in Board training for new members. 
 
4. Board Self-Evaluation (May Board meeting):  
 



12 
 

Content 
 
 

 Agreed that because we evaluate individual roles, we can be reluctant to call in places 
for change (it makes us careful about each other). Better to talk about the board 
function as a whole.  

 
 

 Discussed using the data from the survey as a starting point for the generative 
conversation (look for areas where individuals disagreed, where one member 
disagrees with everyone else, etc).  

o Going beyond the quantitative data and using it to prompt generative 
discussion aligns with the 8th Principle. 

 
 

 Survey Monkey can allow folks to respond only to the committees that they are active 
on, which is what we want. 

 
 

 Add “New Member Experience” questions. 
 
 

 Timing on Getting This Done - Present in the April meeting.  
  
Closing Words—Ryan: Steven Skavinski - I am home I have arrived. 



13 
 

FIRST UNITARIAN CHURCH OF PORTLAND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
Communications Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 9th, 2021 6:30 - 8:00 Zoom Room 
 
The meeting convened via Zoom.   
  
Present:  Barbara Morrison, Kathy Ludlow, Theo Harper, Mindy Clark, Brad Taylor 
 
Opening words 
 
The February meeting minutes were approved as written. 
 
The February Moderator Letter was discussed.  
 

Topics to be addressed:   
 

It was noted that we are passing the one-year anniversary of transitioning to our 
virtual services. 
 
The Board will be seeking engagement with congregants as we begin developing the 
process for determining the 3-year goals for the church. 
 
There will be further opportunities to learn more about the 8th Principle. 

 
The committee discussed the outreach efforts regarding the Church Goals. 
 

There was discussion regarding the responses that have been received following the 
emails to groups regarding the Church Goals.  Some groups have responded that they 
would like a board member to attend their meeting, some groups have responded 
that they prefer to have the questionnaire sent out and so that members can respond 
on their own, and some groups have stated that they will check in with their groups 
and determine the best method for them to share their thoughts regarding the 
Church’s strengths, challenges, and priorities.   

 
A few groups have not yet responded.  Alternative contacts were suggested and 
follow up will occur. 

 
The format of the questionnaire was discussed, and the committee determined that 
it would be appropriate for a statement to be added to the questionnaire that will 
offer some examples of topics that comments could focus on as they consider the 
questionnaire’s prompts.  Mindy agreed to develop language to add to the 
questionnaire and then share the draft with the committee. 



14 
 

 
It was also determined that the questionnaire will include First Unitarian’s Mission 
and Vision statements along with First Unitarian’s current 5-Year Goals.  Mindy will 
add this language to the draft. 

 
It was noted that the Church Goals Questionnaire uses the name First Unitarian Church and 
does not include the Universalist descriptor. 
 

There was a sense that the use of this language had not been fully considered.   
 
It was noted that we are required to use the church’s legal name, which is First 
Unitarian Church.  In order for the Board to use Universalist in the name, the 
congregation would need to approve a formal and legal name change.   

 
The committee set dates for upcoming Board Forums and will recommend that these forums be 
used to engage the congregation around the Church Goals 
 

Dates chosen were:  April 18th at 11:45 and April 22nd at 7pm 
 
Closing words 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Brad Taylor



15 
 

 
 
 



16 
 



17 
 



18 
 

 

 



19 
 



20 
 

 


